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June 29, 2012
The Honorable Larry Gossett
Chair, King County Council

Room 1200

C O U R T H O U S E 

Dear Councilmember Gossett:

The attached ordinance would authorize the issuance of up to $56 million of new limited tax general obligation (LTGO) bonds (the Bonds) for the purpose of providing the funds needed to exercise the County’s purchase option on the Pat Steel Building (the Building) at the Harborview Medical Center.  This proposed ordinance is consistent with the financial stewardship goal in King County’s Strategic Plan and will help provide for the long-term sustainability of medical services to County residents.
The Building was originally built in 2002, using the proceeds from the issuance of so-called “63-20” lease revenue bonds, by a non-profit entity that was specially created to develop the project in order to protect the County from construction cost risks.  The non-profit entity holds ownership of the Building as long as any 63-20 bonds are outstanding.  The County is responsible for making monthly lease rental payments to the non-profit entity in order to provide sufficient funds to pay the debt service due on these 63-20 bonds.  As the Building is occupied by tenants of Harborview Medical Center (HMC), the County’s rental payments are in turn funded from rental payments charged to the HMC.

The financial choice faced by the County is whether to: (1)  refinance the outstanding 63-20 bonds with new 63-20 bonds; or (2)  issue new LTGO bonds that will be used to pay off the outstanding 63-20 bonds.  We are recommending the latter choice for reasons described below.
With the current very low level of interest rates, the debt service savings that would result from the refunding of the outstanding 63-20 bonds would easily exceed the appropriate targets for such transactions as specified in the County’s adopted Debt Management Policy (Motion 12660).  Based on interest rates as of early April, the present value of the savings is projected to be approximately $6 million.  The annual savings will be approximatly $600 thousand until the bonds are paid off in 2031.
While this refunding could certainly be undertaken by having the non-profit issue new 63-20 bonds, the interest rates on such bonds would be substantially higher than those that could be obtained on regular County-issued LTGO bonds.  Seattle Northwest, the County’s financial advisor, estimates that the rates on new 63-20 bonds would be more than 20 basis points higher.  While in both cases the credit is ultimately an LTGO of the County, the difference in interest cost is explained by the market’s familiarity and acceptance of the County’s credit versus that of a single-purpose non-profit entity.  In other words, investors are already comfortable with the County’s credit story which limits the amount of due diligence they need to do on a County LTGO bond.  Conversely, a 63-20 lease revenue bond backed by the County’s LTGO would be a “story” bond and would require further due diligence by investors in order to understand the credit.
Additionally, the original 63-20 financing documents for the Building required the funding of a debt service reserve fund (DSRF), which would not be necessary with a County LTGO bond issue.  In an LTGO financing, the funds that currently reside in the DSRF for the existing 63-20 bonds would be contributed to the refinancing transaction and significantly enhance the annual cash flow savings.  The current reserve is slightly less than $4.4 million.
Based on the recommendation of the County’s financial advisor, the debt service savings from a refunding are maximized by issuing the Bonds as LTGO bonds and using the proceeds to exercise the County’s option to purchase the Building from the non-profit at a price sufficient to pay off the outstanding 63-20 bonds on their first call date in December 2012.  Since the Building has long been completed and occupied, the original rationale for using 63-20 bonds -- namely the elimination of construction risk for the County -- is no longer applicable, making this proposed course of action the more prudent choice.
The Office of Performance, Strategy and Budget (PSB) is currently evaluating whether additional appropriation will be needed in the LTGO fund to cover the increase in debt service in 2012.  

As noted previously, as the tenant of the Building, the savings generated by this refunding will accrue to HMC in the form of reduced rental payments and thereby will help provide for the long-term sustainability of quality medical care for County residents.
Once authorized, the finance director will move to expedite this refunding as long as the debt service savings still meet the County’s target.  The exact terms of the Bonds will be established by the finance director in consultation with the County’s financial advisor and confirmed by the King County Council in a sale motion to be adopted on the day of the sale.

For the above reasons, this proposed legislation is considered prudent and we would welcome the Council’s timely review.  If you have any questions in this regard, please call Ken Guy, Director of the Finance and Business Operations Division, at 206-263-9254, or Nigel Lewis, Senior Debt Analyst in the Treasury Operations Section, at 206-296-1168.
Sincerely,

Dow Constantine
King County Executive

Enclosures

cc:
King County Councilmembers



ATTN:  Michael Woywod, Chief of Staff

  Mark Melroy, Senior Principal Legislative Analyst, BFM Committee

  Anne Noris, Clerk of the Council


Fred Jarrett, Deputy County Executive, King County Executive Office (KCEO)


Carrie S. Cihak, Chief Advisor, Policy and Strategic Initiatives, KCEO

Dwight Dively, Director, Office of Performance, Strategy and Budget

Caroline Whalen, County Administrative Officer, Department of Executive 

    Services (DES)

Kathy Brown, Director, Facilities Management Division, DES
Ken Guy, Director, Finance and Business Operations Division (FBOD), DES
Nigel Lewis, Senior Debt Analyst, Treasury Operations, FBOD, DES
